
  
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
  
2. MINUTES

 2.a. Consideration of the minutes of the July 5, 2023 Plan Commission meeting
 Attachment
  
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS

No public hearings have been scheduled.
  
4. CONSENT AGENDA

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a  Plan Commission member so requests, in
which event the item will be removed from the General Order of Business and considered at this point on
the agenda.

 4.a. Consideration of Resolution 2023-032 approving a two-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey
Map for the property located at 3981 S Afton Road in the Town of Beloit

 Attachment

 4.b. Consideration of Resolution 2023-033 approving a one-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey
Map for the property located on the 3200 block of E County Road S in the Town of Turtle

 Attachment

 4.c. Consideration of Resolution 2023-034 approving a one-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey
Map for the property located at 9558 S Hidden Creek Court in the Town of Turtle

 Attachment
  
5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS

Zoning Map Amendment - 2000 Gateway Boulevard
Comprehensive Plan Amendment - 1006 Park Avenue
Zoning Map Amendment - 1006 Park Avenue
Zoning Map Amendment - 2231 Trevino Court
Eagles Ridge Plat No. 5
 

  
6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Trewyn Annexation and Zoning

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
BELOIT PLAN COMMISSION

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511
7:00 PM 

Wednesday, July 19, 2023

 

 

 

 

 Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - July 19, 2023

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2065878/07-05-2023_Plan_Commission_minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2062827/PC_Report_-_CSM-2023-14__3981_S_Afton__TOB_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2062833/PC_Report_-_CSM-2023-15__E_County_Rd_S__TOT_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2062834/PC_Report_-_CSM-2023-16__9558_S_Hidden_Creek__TOT_.pdf


Sign Ordinance Updates
 

  
7. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs
of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please
contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

 

 Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - July 19, 2023

2



 

1 | P a g e  
 

MINUTES 
PLAN COMMISSION 

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 
7:00 PM 

Wednesday, July 5, 2023 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
Chairperson Ramsden called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. Councilor Day and 
Commissioners Ramsden, Abarca, Flesch, Janke, and Elliott (7:03 PM) were present. 
Commissioners Anderson and Jacobsen were absent. 
 

2. MINUTES 
2.a. Consideration of the minutes of the June 21, 2023 Plan Commission meeting 

Chairperson Ramsden wanted language added to the minutes regarding the Trevino 
rezoning explaining why he voted no, specifically concern about there being no other 
attached housing in the neighborhood, that less green space could impact property 
values, and property owners should have an expectation that the zoning surrounding 
their property should remain as it is. Commissioner Janke moved to approve the 
minutes as amended, seconded by Commissioner Abarca. Motion prevailed, voice vote 
(5-0). 

 
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

3.a. Consideration of Resolution 2023-031 approving an Exception to Section 30.09 and 
denying an exception to Section 30.40(2)(c) of the Outdoor Sign Regulations for the 
property located at 2757 Prairie Ave 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation.   
 
Chairperson Ramsden asked if Ms. Christensen can summarize the purpose of the Sign 
Ordinance. Ms. Christensen brought the purpose section of the Sign Ordinance onto 
the monitors and read through the section.   
 
Chairperson Ramsden asked why the signs was legal nonconforming since 2005. Ms. 
Christensen said that when the land division was approved in 2005, the Shopko sign 
was not kept on the same parcel where Shopko was located.  This sign was then re-
used by CubeSmart.  Chairperson Ramsden asked if it is possible when the ordinance 
is revised to have some language in there that would give the City the ability to take 
down a sign if it was no longer necessary. Ms. Christensen said that it is difficult to take 
away a sign because with the way the state law is written, unless the sign is abandoned 
for 12 months or more.  
 
Chairperson Ramsden opened the public hearing. 
 

3



 

2 | P a g e  
 

Vicki Schleisner, 761 South Oak Drive, Janesville, Wisconsin, stated she is asking 
Commissioners to consider granting her request for larger signs on the building.  Ms. 
Schleisner stated that she originally wanted the signs on both sides of the building. Ms. 
Schleisner said that the reason the ordinance allows exceptions is because there are 
different circumstances, and when you drive down Prairie you cannot see their sign so 
that is why they want the signs on both sides of the building.  
 
Commissioner Ramsden stated that in order to grant an exception it has to meet three 
requirements listed in the Ordinance.  Chairperson Ramsden said staff says the 30 
square foot sign is an adequate size for the business, and the staff does not feel that 
the hardship is being shown. Ms. Schleisner said she knows that, but wants the Plan 
Commission to take that into consideration.  
 
Commissioner Flesch asked if the monument sign would be under the CubeSmart sign. 
Ms. Schleisner said yes, but with the other signs along Prairie Avenue, you cannot see 
the sign until you drive past it. Chairperson Ramsden said that the staff argument is 
that the smaller secondary wall sign is adequately visible. Ms. Schleisner said it would 
be hard to see if it was half the size that it is on the rendering.  
 
Commissioner Elliott asked what would be an example of a hardship that would meet 
the requirements of the Ordinance. Ms. Christensen said that if they had a site that 
was further back from the street where it would be hard to see, and if the building was 
already there, setback on the site, and they are simply replacing the sign. Ms. 
Christensen said that the City is trying to only allow the minimum signage needed for 
the site.  Another example would be if the business had a long name, so the name 
could not be read unless the sign size was increased.  It is an analysis on a case-by-case 
basis.   
 
Ms. Schleisner stated that she is competing with the neighboring businesses, and that 
there is hardship. Ms. Schleisner said that the customers will not be able to see the 
signs due to the other signs nearby. Chairperson Ramsden asked if the Pizza Hut sign 
and KFC sign are conforming. Ms. Christensen said she thinks the KFC sign is 
nonconforming, and she does not know about the Pizza Hut sign.  
 
Chairperson Ramsden asked when the City staff evaluated this if they took in 
consideration the large poles on the existing pole signs that could be obstructing the 
view of her signs. Ms. Christensen said that they took a look at other Scooters signage, 
where smaller signage was installed on the building.  
 
Commissioner Flesch asked Ms. Schleisner when she bought the property, she looked 
at the ordinances to see what signage would be allowed.  Ms. Schleisner said she 
looked at the sign ordinance and saw that it allowed exceptions, and that is why she is 
here tonight hoping it can be granted.  
 

4



 

3 | P a g e  
 

Councilor Day said the way that it is submitted she can still have a larger sign, having 
one sign rather than two signs. Ms. Christensen said she can apply the bonus sign to 
one sign or both signs. Commissioner Janke said that she could eliminate the one logo 
on the front and apply that square footage to increase the two signs. Ms. Christensen 
said she does not know if she can do that. She said that there is a couple bonus 
allowances, and all the bonuses are related to reducing the maximum sign area for an 
on-premise sign.  
 
Councilor Day asked if they could eliminate the monument sign all together. Ms. 
Schleisner said that they considered not doing the monument sign because it is 
expensive and will delay opening. Ms. Christensen said that if she does not do a 
freestanding sign, removing the monument sign, then one of the wall signs could be 
up to 150 square feet, as it would be the primary.  If they still used the same size wall 
sign, they could use a percentage of the reduction in the primary towards the other 
secondary signs, and possibly have the sizes that the applicant wants on the building.   
 
Commissioner Flesch said that if you eliminate the monument sign, they have the 
ability to make the two building signs larger. Ms. Christensen said staff would have to 
recalculate the bonuses, but it is possible that she could have both of her larger wall 
signs, if she removed the monument sign. 
 
Commissioner Janke said that the sign could be visible from the street. Commissioner 
Elliott said he thinks that would be different if it was on Milwaukee Road, but there is 
not a lot of traffic on Prairie. Commissioner Elliott said the size would be helpful, and 
he does not know if it would look nice if it were smaller. He said he sees the hardship.  
 
Chairperson Ramsden closed the public hearing.  
 
Chairperson Ramsden said that there needs to be compliance, but he believes there is 
a hardship there with the signage. He believes the hardship is not self-created, the pole 
sign is not something she can do anything about.    
 
Commissioner Janke moved to approve the Resolution allowing the maximum sign 
area exception but denying the exception to increase the size of the secondary signs, 
seconded by Commissioner Flesch. Motion approved, roll call vote (3-2), with 
Chairperson Ramsden and Commissioner Elliott voting no. 
 

4. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS 
Ms. Christensen updated the Plan Commission on the actions taken by City Council related 
to a variety of items previously reviewed by Plan Commission. Ms. Christensen said the next 
Plan Commission meeting is scheduled for July 19, 2023. 
 

5. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Julie Christensen outlined the future agenda items. 

5



 

4 | P a g e  
 

 
6. ADJOURNMENT 

Commissioner Flesch moved to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Commissioner Janke at 
7:55 PM.   Motion carried, voice vote (5-0). 
 
 
 

  
Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 

6



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  July 19, 2023 

Agenda Item:  4.a. 

File Number:  CSM-2023-14 

General Information 

Applicant:  Combs & Associates, Inc.  
Owner:  Jared and Elizabeth Armstrong 
Address:  3981 S. Afton Road/Parcel 6-2-30 
Jurisdiction: Town of Beloit
Applicant’s Request: Two-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map (CSM) 

Staff Analysis 

Proposed Land Division: The intent of the proposed extraterritorial CSM is to divide the current 
41.63-acre parcel into two lots. Lot 1 is 11.54 acres with frontage on Afton Road, and contains 
an existing house, garage and shed that will be retained by the owners.  Lot 2 is 30.09 acres and 
will be sold to a developer for a 19-lot single-family subdivision. A Preliminary Plat for Lot 2 
(attached) was approved by Plan Commission on March 22, 2023.  This CSM does not change 
that approval.  This CSM divides the land to be retained by the owners from the parcel that will 
eventually be sold, final platted and developed. Portions of the 47.04-acre parent parcel shown 
as unplatted lands on the CSM that were also part of the approved Preliminary Plat were 
recently conveyed to adjacent land owners through a Plat of Survey (attached). Parcel A on the 
Plat of Survey (2.02 acres) was conveyed to the owner of Lot 18 of Creekview Estates and Parcel 
B (1.01 acres) was conveyed to the owner of Lot 17 of Creekview Estates. Lot 2 now contains 
the remaining 19 lots that were approved for development in the preliminary plat. 

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  The property is subject to Town zoning with Lot 1 zoned A-
2, General Agricultural District and Lot 2 zoned R-R Rural Residential District. The subject 
property is surrounded by Town R-1, Single Family Residential to the north (Creekview Estates), 
A-1, Farmland Preservation District to the south and east, and a mix of A-2 and R-1 to the west 
across Afton Road.  

City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land 
Use Map indicates that this property is outside the Long-Range Urban Growth Area and 
recommends Agricultural uses for the subject properties. However, land use cannot be 
considered when reviewing Extraterritorial CSM applications according to state law. 

Review Agent Comments:  AT&T noted Lot 2 does not have any facilities and will need to be 
fed from Griffindale Drive for any future service unless there is an easement added to Lot 1.  
No other comments were received. 

7



STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached two-lot 
Extraterritorial CSM for 3981 S. Afton Road in the Town of Beloit, subject to the following 
condition: 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year 
of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Certified Survey Map, Application, Site Assessment Checklist, 
Wetland Indicative Soils Map, Previously Approved Preliminary Plat, Plat of Survey and 
Resolution. 

8



LOCATION MAP 

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



RESOLUTION 2023-032 

APPROVING A TWO-LOT EXTRATERRITORIAL CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP  
FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3981 S. AFTON ROAD IN THE TOWN OF BELOIT 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 
City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 
Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 
subdivision of land within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for 3981 S. Afton Road in the 
Town of Beloit, containing 41.63 acres, more or less, is located within the extraterritorial 
jurisdiction of the City of Beloit; and 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached 
two-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 

PART OF OUTLOTS 3-7 AND 3-8 OF THE ASSESSOR'S PLAT OF BELOIT TOWNSHIP AND 
LOCATED IN THE SW 1/4 OF THE NW 1/4, SE 1/4 OF THE NW, NE 1/4 OF THE SW 1/4 
AND IN THE NW 1/4 OF THE SW 1/4 OF SECTION 3, T. 1 N., R. 12 E. OF THE 4TH P.M., 
TOWN OF BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit 
does hereby conditionally approve the attached two-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map 
for 3981 S. Afton Road in the Town of Beloit, subject to the following condition: 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one 
year of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

Adopted this 19th day of July, 2023. 

Plan Commission 

Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 

ATTEST: 

Julie Christensen, 
Community Development Director

20



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  July 19, 2023 

Agenda Item:  4.b. 

File Number:  CSM-2023-15 

General Information 

Applicant: Turtle Creek Development 
Owner:  Turtle Creek Development 
Address:  3200 Block of E. County Road S/Parcels 6-19-101A, 6-19-102A and 6-19-190.5A 

(southwest quadrant of E. County Road S and I-39/90) 
Jurisdiction: Town of Turtle
Applicant’s Request: One-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map (CSM) 

Staff Analysis 

Proposed Land Division: The intent of the proposed extraterritorial CSM is to combine the 
current three parcels totaling 45.99 acres into one lot for the development of a manufacturing 
use. The existing three lots are vacant and have been used for agricultural purposes.  Frontage 
for the proposed Lot 1 is along the 3200 block of E. County Road S, 3200 block of Tortoise Lane 
and 8000 block of Terrapin Trail.   Any development of the proposed Lot 1 would be on private 
well and septic. 

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  The properties are subject to Town zoning.  The two larger 
parcels are zoned Commercial Highway, and the smaller parcel is zoned A-E, Exclusive 
Agriculture.  The Town of Turtle is in the process of rezoning all three parcels for a 
manufacturing use.  The subject properties are surrounded by Town Commercial Highway and  
A-E, Exclusive Agriculture zoning. There is an existing single family residence zoned R-R, Rural 
Residential located across E. County Road S on the northeast corner of E. County Road S and 
County BT near the southwest corner of the proposed Lot 1. 

City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land 
Use Map indicates that this property is within the Long-Range Urban Growth Area and 
recommends Agricultural uses for the subject properties. However, land use cannot be 
considered when reviewing Extraterritorial CSM applications according to state law. 

Review Agent Comments:  AT&T indicated they do not have any conflicts within the proposed 
Lot 1.  No other comments were received. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached one-lot 
Extraterritorial CSM on the 3200 block of E. County Road S in the Town of Turtle, subject to the 

21



following condition: 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year 
of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Certified Survey Map, Application Site Assessment Checklist 
and Resolution. 

22



LOCATION MAP 

23



24



25



26



27



RESOLUTION 2023-033 

APPROVING A ONE-LOT EXTRATERRITORIAL CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP  
FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE 3200 BLOCK OF E. COUNTY ROAD S IN THE TOWN OF 

TURTLE 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 
City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 
Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 
subdivision of land within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map on the 3200 block of E. County 
Road S in the Town of Turtle, containing 45.99 acres, more or less, is located within the 
extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Beloit; and 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached 
one-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 

PART OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 AND PART OF THE SE 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 
8, PART OF THE NW 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 AND PART OF THE NE 1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 OF 
SECTION 17, ALL IN T. 1 N., R. 13 E., OF THE 4TH P.M., TOWN OF TURTLE, ROCK COUNTY, 
WISCONSIN. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit 
does hereby conditionally approve the attached one-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map on 
the 3200 block of E. County Road S in the Town of Turtle, subject to the following condition: 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one 
year of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

Adopted this 19th day of July, 2023. 

Plan Commission 

Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 

ATTEST: 

Julie Christensen, 
Community Development Director

28



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  July 19, 2023 

Agenda Item:  4.c. 

File Number:  CSM-2023-16 

General Information 

Applicant:  R.H. Batterman and Co., Inc. 
Owner:  Michelle and Terry Ellwanger 
Address:  9558 S. Hidden Creek Court/Parcels 6-19-399.201 and 6-19-399.202 
Jurisdiction: Town of Turtle
Applicant’s Request: One-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map (CSM) 

Staff Analysis 

Proposed Land Division: The intent of the proposed extraterritorial CSM is to combine two 
residential lots into one. There is an existing single-family residence at 9558 S. Hidden Creek 
Court located on a two-acre lot that will be combined with an adjacent two-acre lot at the 
southwest corner of County Road X and Hidden Creek Court in the Town of Turtle.  The 
proposed Lot 1 will be 4.002 acres.  

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  The properties are subject to Town zoning and are zoned R-
R, Rural Residential District. The subject properties are surrounded by Town R-R zoning and 
residential uses.  

City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land 
Use Map recommends Single-Family Residential-Exurban uses for the subject properties. 
However, land use cannot be considered when reviewing Extraterritorial CSM applications 
according to state law. 

Review Agent Comments:  AT&T indicated they do not have any conflicts or cables running 
through the middle of the combined lots.  No other comments were received. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached one-lot 
Extraterritorial CSM for 9558 S. Hidden Creek Court in the Town of Turtle, subject to the 
following condition: 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year 
of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Certified Survey Map, Application and Resolution. 

29



LOCATION MAP 

30



31



32



RESOLUTION 2023-034 

APPROVING A ONE-LOT EXTRATERRITORIAL CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP  
FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 9558 S. HIDDEN CREEK COURT IN THE TOWN OF TURTLE 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 
City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 
Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 
subdivision of land within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map for 9558 S. Hidden Creek Court in 
the Town of Turtle, containing 4.002 acres, more or less, is located within the extraterritorial 
jurisdiction of the City of Beloit; and 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached 
one-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 

LOTS 1 AND 2 OF HIDDEN CREEK ESTATES, BEING PART OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 OF 
SECTION 15, AND PART OF THE NW 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 22, T. 1 N., R. 13 E., 
OF THE 4TH P.M., TOWN OF TURTLE, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit 
does hereby conditionally approve the attached one-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map 
for 9558 S. Hidden Creek Court in the Town of Turtle, subject to the following condition: 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one 
year of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

Adopted this 19st day of July, 2023. 

Plan Commission 

Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 

ATTEST: 

Julie Christensen, 
Community Development Director

33


	Plan Commission Agenda
	2023-1828 - Attachment
	2023-1829 - Attachment
	2023-1834 - Attachment
	2023-1835 - Attachment

